
Stoughton Hospital Association Finance Committee 

Friday, April 18, 2025 | 7:15 a.m. – 8:30 a.m. 

MS Teams Link:  Join the meeting now  | Meeting ID: 214 729 259 186 | Passcode: BU9B3Ag9 

Committee Function and Members 

Committee Function: Maintain general financial oversight of hospital finances, including corporation’s 
budget, and report to the Board.  Examine monthly financial reports and supervise the management of 
hospital funds.  Have the general responsibility to make recommendations to the Board of Directors 
concerning the purchase of additional property, replacement thereof as well as repair and maintenance of said 
property and equipment; review all prospective purchases of equipment which exceed a value established by 
resolution of the Board of Directors.  

* Must be Secretary/Treasurer

* Directors may not serve on Finance and Audit Committees simultaneously

Committee Members: Glenn Kruser (Chair) | Steve Peotter (Co-Chair) | Cindy McGlynn | Matt Kinsella (SSM 
Rep.) | Dr. Ashish Rawal | Tim Rusch (Ex Officio) 

Item Discussion Presenter 
Glenn Kruser 

A Glenn Kruser 

A Michelle Abey 

Michelle Abey 

A Amy Hermes 

A 

1. Call to Order

2. Review and Approval of February 28, 2025 Finance Committee Meeting
Minutes (See Attached, Pg. 3-6)

3. March 2025 Financials (See Attached, Pg. 7-20)

4. April Month-to-Date Financial Update

5. Capital Requests:
• Ultrasonic Washer (See Attached, Pg. 21)
• Mako Robot (See Attached, Pg. 22-23)

6. Debt Management Strategy
a. Debt Summary as of March 31, 2025
b. Recommendations for 2025

• Approval of Resolution to Retire 2015 Bonds at Interest Reset
Date – September 1, 2015 (See Attached, Pg. 24)

• Approval of Resolution for Partial Prepayment of 2018 & 2023
Bonds (See Attached, Pg. 25-26)

Michelle Abey 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YzFlNTA0MjYtMmI5NC00MTJhLWE1NzItZmYyZmZhOGEyOTVi%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22367b5c1b-0570-438f-89d9-f701fb549e26%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22be3212bb-d10e-4597-b89a-85f8d35f20b9%22%7d


Page 2 

Item Discussion Presenter 

A Laura Mays 

All 

7. Community Health Needs Assessment Implementation Strategy Review
& Approval (30 mins.) (See Attached, Pg. 27-37)

8. Open Discussion

9. Adjournment Glenn Kruser 

Upcoming Meetings: 
• Audit Compliance/Risk Management Committee Meeting: Friday, April 18, 2025 at 8:30 a.m. (immediately

following Finance Committee)
• Quality Committee Meeting: Tuesday, April 22, 2025 at 9:00 a.m.
• Executive Committee Meeting:  Wednesday, April 23, 2025 at 7:15 a.m.
• Governing Board Meeting: Wednesday, May 28, 2025 at 7:15 a.m.

Note: 
• A = Item requiring a Board/Committee Action, Approval, Recommendation or Acceptance
• R = Item requiring a formal Board Resolution

MISSION 
The mission of Stoughton Hospital is to provide safe, quality health care with exceptional personalized service. 

VISION 
We grow to meet the changing needs of the communities we serve and become their health partner of choice. 

VALUES 
Our patients and community are our number one priority. 

Finance Committee Packet, Page 2



Stoughton Hospital Association Finance Committee 

Friday, February 28, 2025 | 7:15 a.m. – 8:30 a.m. 

MS Teams Link:  Join the meeting now | Meeting ID: 285 166 933 574 | Passcode: dk3WJ67o 

Committee Function and Members 

Committee Function: Maintain general financial oversight of hospital finances, including corporation’s 
budget, and report to the Board.  Examine monthly financial reports and supervise the management of 
hospital funds.  Have the general responsibility to make recommendations to the Board of Directors 
concerning the purchase of additional property, replacement thereof as well as repair and maintenance of said 
property and equipment; review all prospective purchases of equipment which exceed a value established by 
resolution of the Board of Directors.  

* Must be Secretary/Treasurer

* Directors may not serve on Finance and Audit Committees simultaneously

Meeting Attendees: Glenn Kruser (virtual) | Steve Peotter | Cindy McGlynn | Matt Kinsella (virtual) | Dr. 
Ashish Rawal (virtual) | Tim Rusch | Donna Olson | Kris Krentz | Dr. Aaron Schwaab | Sue Vanderbilt 
(virtual) | Laura Mays | Dacia Brunner | Chris Brabant | Michelle Abey | Angie Polster 

Item Discussion Presenter 
1.  Call to Order

Mr. Peotter called the February 28, 2025 Finance Committee meeting to
order at 7:15 a.m.

Steve Peotter 

A 

2.  Review and Approval of November 22, 2024 Finance Committee Meeting
Minutes

Motion: Mr. Rusch made a motion to approve the November 22, 2024
Finance Committee meeting minutes.  Ms. McGlynn seconded the motion.
Motion carried.

Steve Peotter 

3.  January 2025 Financials

Ms. Abey provided an overview of January 2025 Financials, which can be
found in the February 28, 2025 Finance Committee packet.  She shared
January operating income was $1,165,452 which was more than budget by
$725,367.

Michelle Abey 

Finance Committee Packet, Page 3

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MjgzMjhkNzMtNzQ3My00Nzk2LWFhYmItMjYwMDY3YjNlODQ1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22367b5c1b-0570-438f-89d9-f701fb549e26%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22be3212bb-d10e-4597-b89a-85f8d35f20b9%22%7d


Page 2 

Item Discussion Presenter 
Ms. Abey referred to the balance sheet and noted cash and cash equivalents 
was approximately $24.5M and there are $20M in certificates of deposit.  She 
noted short-term investments are limited to the outpatient center project, 
and thus, can’t be spent for other needs.  Ms. Abey shared days revenue in 
accounts receivable was 45 days at the end of January which is lower than 
what the days were following the change in clearinghouse in 2024.  She 
noted both lease assets and liabilities increased which was related to the 
new agreement in place for the Oregon location as of January 1, 2025.   

Ms. Abey stated January was another strong month, with operating income 
of $1.1M.  She noted there has been high levels of activity on the outpatient 
side.  The inpatient side was lower than budget for the month., which is 
mainly attributed to the Geriatric Psychiatry unit census as there was a 
higher daily census than in the past, but lower than what was budgeted.  
Ms. Abey shared outpatient CT continues to have a positive variance of 
$195,000.  She added the Laboratory is also above budget, but this was not a 
surprise due to respiratory illnesses and lab testing needed to diagnosis 
them.  Ms. Abey shared one area that continues to lag behind budget is MRI 
since there is an open MRI tech position.  In response to not being able to 
recruit, a MRI tech traveler will be in place in March which should allow for 
MRI volumes to increase.  She added our Medical Imaging Manager 
recently had a positive interview with a potential MRI tech, so hopefully 
soon the open position will be filled.  Mr. Brabant noted agency costs for the 
organization are approximately $1.4M annually (approximately $110,000 
per month), so the team is working hard to reduce the commitment.   

Ms. Abey shared a summary of year-to-date compared to budgeted surgical 
services cases and noted to date, surgical services is only 13 cases or 2% 
below budget.  She noted one of the larger variances is in the podiatry area.  
Last year for Podiatry, Dr. Graney had done 28 cases by the end of January 
and Dr. Lind has had only two surgical cases through the end of January 
this year.  Ms. Abey shared Orthopedics and General Surgery are ahead of 
last year at this time.   

Mr. Brabant asked whether we are seeing trending with payers delaying 
payment.   Ms. Abey noted she did not believe they are taking longer than 
they have historically.  Dean Health Plan would typically pay clean claims 
in 29.5 days, Quartz would be approximately 20 days, Medicare is 14 days, 
and Medicaid is 5-7 days.  Mr. Rusch asked whether denials become delays 
and Ms. Abey confirmed.  

Finance Committee Packet, Page 4



Page 3 

Item Discussion Presenter 
A Motion: Ms. McGlynn made a motion to approve January 2025 Financial 

Statements.  Mr. Kruser seconded the motion.  Motion carried.   

4.  February Month-to-Date Financial Update

Ms. Abey provided an overview of February month-to-date financials.  She
shared the summary reflects charges through earlier this week and noted
Stoughton Health’s total is approximately 8.6% below budget, but this is a
moment in time and not everything has been posted.  Stoughton Health has
a seven business day close process which generally ensures that revenue
posted late is recorded in the month in which it was performed.  Ms. Abey
noted McFarland Urgent Care and Cottage Grove Urgent Care are above
budget, but Oregon Urgent Care is below budget due to opening with
expanded hours later than initially expected.  Ms. Abey shared Medical
Imaging is below budget which is mainly attributed to staffing shortages in
the MRI modality.

Michelle Abey 

A 

5.  Policy 2.10: Financial Assistance Policy Changes

Ms. Abey shared the Federal Poverty Level was increased in January, so it is
a good time to review the policy as the policy is updated for the new federal
poverty dollar amounts.  She shared that the team reviewed what other
facilities offer as financial assistance and as a self pay discount.  This review
noted that Stoughton Health is in line with other rural hospitals.  Ms. Abey
noted our uninsured charges for fiscal 2024 were only $2.3M on gross
charges of $188M, which is approximately 1%.  Mr. Peotter asked whether
there is community feedback or provider discussion on the self-pay
discount, and whether it increases eligibility, and Ms. Abey confirmed.  Dr.
Schwaab asked whether there was a start date for the policy, and Ms. Abey
stated the self-pay discount would be effective as of April 1st.  Ms. Abey
added the financial assistance application is valid for six months of service,
once approved, so likely would not make the change in financial assistance
policy levels retroactive.  Ms. Abey recommended the following changes:

• Increase Self-Pay Discount – 39% to 45%
• 100% Financial Assistance – 150% of Federal Poverty Level (FPL) to

200% of FPL
• Additional Advanced Practice Providers Added

Motion: Mr. Rusch made a motion to recommend approval of changes to 
Policy 2.10 - Financial Assistance Policy to the Governing Board.  Mr. 
Kinsella seconded the motion.  Motion carried.   

Michelle Abey 

Finance Committee Packet, Page 5



Page 4 

Item Discussion Presenter 

6.  Discussion of Debt Management Strategy:
• Debt Summary as of January 31, 2025
• 2015 Bond Rate Reset 9/01/2025
• Pre-Payment of Debt Scenarios
• Cash & Investment Strategy

Ms. Abey shared that the 2015 bond issuance is coming to the end of the 
fixed rate period and she wanted to discuss debt management strategy with 
the Finance Committee so that input on direction can be obtained.   

Ms. Abey provided an overview of existing bonds: 

• 2012: Matures on October 1, 2025 and will be paid off.
• 2015: Used to fund Emergency Department and Day Surgery

renovations.  The fixed rate prior for this issuance expires on September
1, 2025.  Originally a $10M loan at a rate of 3.47%.  This allows a 10%
prepayment per year.  Balance is approximately $5.7M as of January 31,
2025.

• 2018: $3.5M for Medical Imaging renovations.  The rate is 3.7% and
matures in 2028.

• 2023: $15.1M for the Outpatient Center.  This issuance allows
prepayment of 20% of the balance and is at an interest rate of 5.71%.

Ms. Abey walked the Committee through the existing debt covenants and 
what Stoughton Health’s metrics are compared to what the covenants 
require: 

• Days Cash on Hand – minimum of 45 days
• Debt Service Coverage Ratio – 1.25X
• 2015 Bond Specific Covenants

• Maintain an Account Balance of at least $3,000,000 at First Business
Bank

• Loan to value < 75%

Ms. Abey shared Stoughton Health’s options for the 2015 Bond Rate Reset 
on September 1, 2025: 

• Pay off the bonds - $5,290,135 – pending legal review: The team reached
out to the banking partner to clarify wording within the bond document.

• Reset Interest Rates for 1, 3, 5, 7 or 10-year term

Michelle Abey 

Finance Committee Packet, Page 6



Page 5 

Item Discussion Presenter 
• Rate based upon Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) or Secured

Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 200 basis points (2%)
multiplied by the Tax-Exempt Multiplier of 0.81%
• Example 5-year rate as of 2/27/2025 = 5.08%
• There are several options in the agreement to reset the interest

rates for various periods.  Ms. Abey believes the reset rate would
likely be around 5%, given current economic conditions.

• Pre-Pay 10% of the Outstanding Amount without penalty - $529,000,
Reset Interest Rates for 1, 3, 5, 7 or 10-year term: Ms. Abey shared
Stoughton Health could prepay 10% and reset interest rates for one of
the yearly terms.

Mr. Brabant asked whether Ms. Abey had a quick synopsis of advantages 
and disadvantages of paying off 2015 bonds, and she shared paying the 
bonds off would release approximately $5.2M of debt and would save on 
interest charges in the long term.  She added she feels we should consider 
prepaying 20% on 2023 bonds since that can be done annually without 
penalty.  Prepaying on the 2023 bonds is advantageous since the interest 
rate is higher than what is being earned on cash right now.  Most recently, 
the organization hadn’t considered prepaying debt as CD rates were above 
5% so that cash was earning more than what is being paid in interest.  She 
noted she believes we can use cash to pay off/down debt and not materially 
affect any debt covenants.  Ms. Abey did note that the organization will 
have some large capital projects coming up.  $10M in capital is estimated to 
be needed to outfit the Ambulatory Surgery Center with operating rooms.  
In addition, there are various other things to consider such as the 1956 
building and other master facility plan projects.   

Mr. Kinsella inquired if Stoughton Health proceeds, would this increase the 
weighted average cost of capital in that moment, and Ms. Abey responded 
she does not have that answer yet.  Mr. Peotter asked Ms. Abey how 
important she felt it was to prepay 2023 bonds, and she stated she feels that 
this should be seriously considered to reduce interest since this bond 
issuance has the highest interest rate.   

The Finance Committee inevitably decided they do not wish to keep debt on 
the books and agreed to have Ms. Abey and her team research these payoffs 
further.  This discussion would be revisited at the April Finance Committee 
meeting with the potential to bring forth a recommendation to the May 
Governing Board meeting. 

Finance Committee Packet, Page 7



Page 6 

Item Discussion Presenter 
7.  Future Capital Purchase Discussion: Robotics

Dr. Ashish Rawal provided a high-level overview of the Mako
SmartRobotics robot, which Stoughton Health is looking at purchasing in
the future.  He noted the Mako robot allows surgeons to place implants in a
more accurate way for both Total Knee and Total Hip surgeries, which
results in better outcomes for the patients.  Dr. Rawal noted this is the future
for Stoughton Health for multiple reasons including the fact that several
surrounding hospitals have robotics for joint replacement (Reedsburg,
Baraboo, Sauk, Platteville, Darlington, Monroe, Columbus, etc.), patients are
coming to expect the use of robotics, and new surgeons have trained on and
expect to use a robot.  He noted this is a newer robot with a smaller
footprint and it is easy to transport.

Dr. Rawal share the robot costs approximately $1M, but ultimately the
return on investment is on the increased volume and market share.  He
noted three different robot manufacturers were reviewed, but the Mako
robot from Stryker was the most robust and was better than the other robots
by far.  Dr. Schwaab asked whether it syncs with our current CT scanning
software, and Dr. Rawal stated they would upload to the server and there
shouldn’t be an additional cost for that.  Mr. Krentz asked how long the
robot has been around, and Dr. Rawal shared it has been around since 2006.
He added Stryker has the longest track record of any of robotic system out
there.  Stoughton Health has surgical techs and other staff that already have
knowledge of operating this robot based upon working at other
organizations.

Dr. Ashish Rawal 

8.  Open Discussion All 

9.  Adjournment

Action: Ms. McGlynn made a motion to adjourn the February 28, 2025
Finance Committee meeting at 8:29 a.m.  Mr. Rusch seconded the motion.
Motion carried.

Steve Peotter 

Respectfully submitted, 

Mr. Glenn Kruser 
Secretary/Treasurer 

Finance Committee Packet, Page 8



STOUGHTON HEALTH

SERVICES AND FINANCIAL REPORTS

March 31, 2025

Finance Committee Packet, Page 9



STOUGHTON HEALTH
FINANCIAL AND SERVICES REPORTS
March 31, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS Page

Operational Executive Summary 1 - 2

Executive Financial Summary 3

Services Summary 4 - 6

Balance Sheet 7

Income Statement 8

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 9

Statement of Cash Flows 10

Finance Committee Packet, Page 10



Page 1 

Stoughton Health 
March 2025 Operational Executive Summary 

Situation: March operating income was $1,391,701 which was $868,194 more than budget. Year-to-date
operating income was $6,293,597 which was $3,671,983 more than the budget of $2,621,614. March excess 
of revenues over expenses was $1,087,892 which was $247,205 more than the budget of $840,777. Year-to-
date excess of revenues over expenses was $7,227,999 which was better than the budget by $2,557,377. 

Background:  Balance Sheet

 Cash and cash equivalents increased by $3,139,376 from February to March. This was mainly the
result of a certificate of deposit (line 1 pg 7) in the amount of $3,000,000 maturing and not being
renewed. There is a correlating decrease in Certificates of deposit (line 2 pg 7) of ($3,000,000).

 Days revenue in accounts receivable (AR days) was 48 days for March (line 37 pg 7) compared to 48
days at the end of last fiscal year and a budget of 44 days.

 Days cash on hand was 383 days at the end of March (line 38 pg 7) which is more than the budgeted
days cash on hand of 368. Expenses per day averaged approximately $184,000 per day in the month
of March.

 The estimated third-party payer settlements liability has increased by $103,360 in the first six months
of fiscal year 2025.  This liability represents the estimated amount which Stoughton Health
anticipates being overpaid on Medicare claims and potential amounts due upon cost report audit
settlement.  This liability fluctuates with changes in the payer mix and distribution of expenses.

Income Statement 

 Inpatient revenues were more than budget by ~$593,000 which is primarily due to an increased
overall daily census for the month compared to the budget.  The average daily census for March was
17.43 compared to budgets of 14.83 and 11.81 in the prior fiscal year.  Pharmacy workload units
were also high in March adding additional favorability.  The following is a comparison of budget to
actual for March and year-to-date by service type:

 Outpatient gross revenues were $15,658,059 which was more than the budget by $586,440. The
main factors impacting the variance are as follows:

o MRI added a traveler this past month, however, there continues to be a reduced number of
scans compared to budget which resulted in a negative gross revenue budget variance of
around ($236,000) in March. 144 scans were performed compared to a budget of 185 scans.

o Med/Surg Observation daily census was 3.17 in March versus a daily budget of 2.0 which
resulted in favorable revenue of approximately $207,000 to budget.

o Ortho Clinics had favorable revenue to budget of $108,000 with 393 visits compared to 242
budgeted.

Finance Committee Packet, Page 11



Page 2 

o Surgical Services had higher than budgeted visits for March resulting in gross revenue being
favorable to budget by approximately $225,000 with the mix of Ortho procedures and
Colonoscopies performed during the month of March driving the favorability.

Below is a table showing surgical cases by service line for the month:

o Lab, including reference lab, averaged 252.87 service units per day compared to a budget of
204.06. This led to a positive variance to gross revenues budgeted of approximately
$162,000.

 This month’s mix resulted in a contractual discount percentage of 62% for the month vs a budgeted
contractual discount of 64.3% resulting in a net revenue increase from budget of ~$421,000.

 Professional fees (line 13 pg 8) were approximately $55,000 under budget. This was the result of
accrued legal fees in a prior month being less than estimated when paid in March, a contracted
position being hired full-time while still being budgeted as a contractor and a maintenance energy
study that was budgeted but hasn’t been started.

 Purchased services (line 14 pg 8) were approximately ($60,000) more than budgeted. This was mostly
the result of an emergency repair to electrical cables that were damaged.

 Supplies expense (line 15 pg 8) was approximately ($47,000) over budget. This was mostly in the IT
department which had $30,350 of expenses related to minor equipment items which weren’t all
budgeted to be spent in this month but rather across the year.

Assessment:  Net patient service revenue was above budget by approximately $864,000.  Expenses in
most areas were close to budget, netting to only a ($14,652) unfavorable variance to the total expense 
budget of $5,687,745. The investment market continues to be volatile.   In March, the market fell for a 
second consecutive month resulting in unrealized losses on investments of ($616,917) compared to a 
budgeted gain of $24,577.

Recommendation: 
1. Recruit and retain staff in order to serve the patients of our communities.
2. Continue to grow where it makes sense including working toward the opening of the Stoughton

Health Outpatient Center.  Growth in podiatry services after opening in December 2024 occurring as
the practice builds.

3. Remain nimble to changing circumstances and recalibrate operations, including the evaluation of
new and old programs, as needed to adjust course.



Page 3

INCOME STATEMENT Current Mo. Current Mo. Current Mo. YTD YTD YTD YTD

March Budget Variance March Budget Variance Prior Year

Line REVENUE:

Patient service revenues:

1   Inpatient 2,605,269$      2,011,951$     593,318$    12,260,503$     11,362,419$    898,084$     8,899,518$     

2    Outpatient 15,658,059  15,071,619     586,440    93,547,591   92,352,721  1,194,870   84,169,898   

3 Total gross patient service revenues 18,263,328  17,083,570  1,179,758  105,808,094   103,715,140  2,092,954   93,069,416   

4 Deductions from revenue (11,375,097)   (11,059,654)  (315,443)  (67,537,849)   (67,361,067)  (176,782)   (59,290,125)  

5     Net patient service revenue 6,888,231  6,023,916  864,315  38,270,245   36,354,073  1,916,172   33,779,291   

6 Other income 205,867   187,336  18,531  1,196,191   1,114,830  81,361   1,045,481  

7     Total revenues 7,094,098  6,211,252  882,846  39,466,436   37,468,903  1,997,533   34,824,772   

EXPENSES:

8 Salaries 2,199,761  2,195,946  (3,815)   12,784,226   13,155,743  371,517   11,192,705   

9 Fringe benefits 594,226   600,735  6,509  3,488,269   3,797,731  309,462   2,830,142  

10 Supplies and other 2,588,689  2,560,531  (28,158)   15,071,295   16,026,065  954,770   14,160,216   

11 Interest 27,089   24,338  (2,751)   164,873   147,780  (17,093)   170,902  

12 Depreciation and amortization 292,632   306,195  13,563  1,664,177   1,719,970  55,793   1,502,087  

13   Total expenses 5,702,397  5,687,745  (14,652)   33,172,840   34,847,289  1,674,449   29,856,052   

14   Operating income 1,391,701  523,507  868,194  6,293,596   2,621,614  3,671,982   4,968,720  

15 Investment income 282,483  246,860  35,623  1,540,005   1,626,549  (86,544)   1,909,865  

16 Unrealized gains (losses) on investments (616,917)   24,577  (641,494)  (826,608)  147,459  (974,067)   1,598,432  

17 Interest in earnings of MRI Joint Venture 30,715   45,833  (15,118)   221,006   275,000  (53,994)   268,489  

18 Other non-operating -  -   -   -  -  -  -  

19 Excess of revenue over expenses 1,087,982$    840,777$    247,205$    7,227,999$     4,670,622$    2,557,377$    8,745,506$     

BALANCE SHEET CASH FLOWS
03/31/25 09/30/24 YTD

20   Cash & short-term investments 28,259,223$    26,462,192$   March 09/30/24

21   Certificates of deposit 21,085,620  32,632,163  Cash provided by (used in):

22   A/R (net) 9,958,215  8,916,193    Operating activities 8,557,394   14,626,789   

23   Total current assets 61,842,275  71,497,255    Investing activities:

24   Investments 17,771,367  13,148,212    Fixed asset purchases & disposals (12,301,940)   (16,573,302)  

25   Property & equipment (net) 54,298,686  46,397,517    Investments 10,449,574  (6,314,212)  

26   Other assets 13,390,123  9,926,584    Financing activities:

27   Total assets 147,302,451  140,969,568    Issuance of debt - 15,165,000  

28   Current liabilities 9,667,406  11,686,371    Payment of debt & related costs (600,482)   (1,401,184)  

29   Long-term debt 20,654,224  21,281,131    Payments on finance leases (54,256)   (87,543)  

30   Other long-term liabilities 3,372,173  1,821,417    Foundation & other 26,761   12,755  

31   Total liabilities 33,693,803  34,788,919  Net cash increase (decrease) 6,077,051   5,428,303  

32   Net assets 113,608,648  106,180,649  Cash, beginning 22,182,172  21,033,889   

33   Total liabilities & net assets 147,302,451  140,969,568  Cash, ending 28,259,223  26,462,192   

RATIOS FY25 2023 RWHC

FY23 FY24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Budget CAH Avg

34 Current Ratio 9.6 5.8 6.1 5.6 6.4 7.3 6.6

35 Operating Margin-Current Month 16.7% 8.0% 19.6%

36 Operating Margin YTD 14.4% 13.1% 16.8% 15.1% 15.9% 5.5% 2.6%

37 Total Margin YTD 18.7% 21.3% 20.6% 18.2% 17.5% 10.1% 6.6%

38 Days in Accounts Receivable (net) 43 48 45 45 48 44 51

39 Days in Accounts Receivable (gross) 44 48 45 45 49

40 Days Cash & Investments on Hand 241 394 385 384 383 368 238

41 Long-term Debt to Equity 0.08 0.20 0.19 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.39

42 Debt Service Coverage (YTD) >1.25 9.5 10.5 7.2 6.3 6.1 6.6 5.6

STATISTICS YTD FY25

FY23 FY24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 March Budget

43 Inpatient Days 3,852 3,599 435 449 442 2,368 4,396

44 Adjusted Patient Days (APD) 34,613 35,892 4,046 3,344 3,098 20,436 42,158

45 Net revenue per APD $1,876 $1,900 $1,628 $1,741 $2,223 $1,873 $1,733

46 FTE's 246.5 260.1 290.5 296.2 295.9 287.4 293.0

47 FTE's per Adjusted Occupied Bed 2.6 2.7 2.2 2.5 3.0 2.6 2.5

48 Avg # of payroll checks per pay period 342 355 377 380 381 373

49 Salaries per APD $633 $663 $558 $616 $710 $626 $643

50 Benefits per APD $146 $160 $192 $193 $192 $171 $178

51 Other Expenses per APD $875 $869 $684 $814 $930 $819 $863

D
e

si
re

d
 

D
ir

e
ct

io
n

Stoughton Health
Executive Financial Summary

March 31, 2025

Variance Key:  Better than (worse than) budget

Finance Committee Packet, Page 13



Page 4

THIS YEAR-
19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 MONTH TO-DATE BUDGET

1.22 1.15 1.12   1.32  1.12  Medical 1.19   1.24  1.05  
0.37 0.29 0.33   0.29  0.07  Surgical 0.13   0.06  0.11  
0.1 0.11 0.05   0.06  0.03  Detoxification 0.03   0.01  0.05  
1.4 1.77 1.21   1.33  1.49  Observation 1.48   1.13  1.45  

0.07 0.06 0.05   0.06  0.04  Swing Bed 0.03   0.08  0.03  
0.08 0.08 0.11   0.10  0.16  Intensive Care 0.13   0.17  0.14  
0.28 0.27 0.28   0.32  0.47  Geriatric Psychiatric 0.42   0.53  0.78  

3.52 3.73 3.15 3.48 3.38 Average Admissions per day 3.41 3.22  3.61  

CURRENT PRIOR 
MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR FISCAL FISCAL 
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025 2025 YR

Medical / Surgical Unit 3.74 3.03 5.03 4.53 2.90 3.13 4.53 5.23 2.97 4.29 5.65 5.14 5.58 4.83 2.00 4.02
Observation 1.03 2.24 1.59 1.49 2.09 1.25 1.86 1.44 1.02 2.18 1.95 1.07 3.17 1.82 2.02 1.97
Swing Bed 0.13 0.57 0.29 0.37 0.00 1.00 0.30 0.26 0.37 0.42 0.58 1.54 0.55 0.60 0.28 0.33
Intensive Care Unit 0.13 0.07 0.19 0.07 0.39 0.42 0.43 0.32 0.67 0.26 0.23 0.57 0.90 0.49 0.25 0.27
Geriatric Psychiatry Unit 4.77 3.53 5.16 6.00 7.26 8.61 7.57 6.42 5.63 7.00 7.58 8.79 7.23 7.09 7.50 5.22

9.80 9.44 12.26 12.46 12.64 14.41 14.69 13.67 10.66 14.15 15.99 17.11 17.43 14.83 12.05 11.81

STOUGHTON HEALTH
S E R V I C E S   S U M M A R Y

for the six months ended March 31, 2025

INPATIENT SERVICES

In March, inpatient admissions (including observation patients) averaged 3.41 admissions per day which was below budget by (0.20) admissions per day or 
(5.5%). Year-to-date inpatient admissions are (0.16) admissions per day or (4.7%) below prior year.

The overall average daily census in March was 17.43 which is above the budgeted average daily census of 12.05 and above the prior year average daily 
census of 11.81. Inpatient Average Daily Census numbers for the past thirteen months, year-to-date for Fiscal 2025, budget and prior year averages are 
shown in the following chart:

BUDGET

Inpatient average daily census numbers for the past five fiscal years, year-to-date for Fiscal 2025, and budget are shown in the following graph:

Additional inpatient service volume statistics for the six months ended March 31, 2023, 2024 and 2025 are as follows:

12.10 11.93 12.05 12.32 11.81
14.83

12.05

0.00

4.00

8.00

12.00

16.00

20.00

FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 YTD Budget

A
ve

ra
g

e
 D

a
il

y 
C

e
n

s
u

s

Total Average Daily Census for Last Five Fiscal Years, Current Fiscal Year-to-Date and 
Budget FY 2025

943
765 879

75 42 110
53 51 89

803 745

1290

1874
1603

2368

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2023 2024 2025

YTD Inpatient Days of Care For Current Year & Last Two Years

Med/Surg/Detox Swing Bed Intensive Care Geriatric Psych Total

Finance Committee Packet, Page 14



Page 5

THIS YEAR-
19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 MONTH TO-DATE BUDGET

2.88   2.28  2.63  2.31  1.71  Medical 8.33   3.02  1.73  
1.68   0.29  0.35  0.51  1.21  Surgical 6.67   3.56  0.96  
9.12   9.59  16.08  9.15  7.93  Swing Bed 17.00   4.60  7.86  
2.73   9.64  3.42  4.88  3.93  Intensive Care 6.00   2.79  3.34  
2.22   2.94  3.38  2.24  0.54  Detoxification - 1.33 0.50  
4.09   3.38  2.85  3.10  2.62  Hospice Acute - 3.00 3.13  

13.28   12.31  10.87  9.86  11.35  Geriatric Psychiatric 9.09   10.69  11.49  

4.29   3.84  3.71  3.47  3.99  8.30   5.01  4.73  

THIS YEAR-
19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 MONTH TO-DATE BUDGET
13.36   14.57  16.90  18.99  20.53  Emergency Department 21.61   21.34   23.03   
37.02   34.06  54.67  43.61  45.73  Urgent Care - Stoughton 45.84   50.57   44.98   
6.47   6.30  8.24  11.02  11.65  Urgent Care - Oregon 20.19   13.74   19.48   
- 2.11 11.19  18.53  20.49  Urgent Care - McFarland 19.32   21.29   21.52   
- - -  -   -   Urgent Care - Cottage Grove 9.94   11.27   13.00   

2.95   3.20  2.84  2.95  3.21  Ambulatory Infusion 3.90   3.42   3.19   
3.12     3.72  4.37  4.66  5.09  Surgical 4.32   4.52   6.31   
0.68     1.04  0.77  1.05  1.21  Sleep Lab 0.97   1.21   1.13   

23.79   30.60  34.87  35.95  39.74  PT - SWAC/Hosp Rehab 42.32   44.27   36.53   
15.42   19.82  19.44  19.79  19.97  PT - Oregon 21.10   20.94   19.57   
9.48     15.27  17.73  19.13  21.95  Rehabilitation - Other 23.39   22.38   21.04   

112.29   130.69  171.02  175.68  189.57  Average Visits per day 212.90   214.95   209.78   

THIS YEAR-
19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 MONTH TO-DATE BUDGET
176.31   192.08  203.97  196.68  202.13  Lab including reference lab 252.87   247.07   204.06   
20.53   20.57  26.84  27.51  30.49  Medical Imaging 31.77   33.83   37.29   
5.73   8.16  8.65  9.27  10.01  Mammography 9.45   10.12   9.52   

11.01   11.62  14.83  15.68  17.94  CT 18.87   18.70   20.23   
1.42   2.96  4.87  6.68  8.37  Echocardiogram 7.81   7.80   8.79   
4.88   5.92  6.76  6.78  7.98  Ultrasound 7.35   7.32   7.03   
0.61   0.94  1.27  1.26  1.50  Nuclear Medicine 1.42   1.94   0.94   
4.04   4.87  4.95  5.90  6.30  MRI 4.65   5.05   5.96   

224.53   247.12  272.14  269.76  284.72  Average Service Units per Day 334.19   331.83   293.81   

Discharge Length of Stay

STOUGHTON HEALTH
S E R V I C E S   S U M M A R Y

for the six months ended March 31, 2025

INPATIENT SERVICES - CONTINUED

OUTPATIENT SERVICES

Outpatient/Emergency services averaged 212.90 visits per day in March which was 3.12 visits per day or 1.5% above budget for the month. Year-to-date 
Outpatient/Emergency services are 25.38 visits or 13.4% above the prior year average visits per day of 189.57.

DIAGNOSTIC SERVICES

Diagnostic services (laboratory & medical imaging areas) averaged 334.19 service units per day in March which was 40.38 units or 13.7% above budget. 
Year-to-date diagnostic services are 47.11 service units per day or 16.5% above last year's average.

Finance Committee Packet, Page 15



Page 6

THIS THIS LAST YEAR- YEAR-

FY FY FY FY FY MONTH MONTH MONTH TO-DATE TO-DATE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET

26 24 20 21 15 Inpatient Surgical Cases 5 2 4 21 8

212 218 201 207 228 Outpatient Surgical Cases 18 15 20 130 115

238 242 221 228 243 Total Surgical Cases 23 17 24 151 123

THIS THIS LAST YEAR- YEAR- YEAR-
FY FY FY FY FY MONTH MONTH MONTH TO-DATE TO-DATE TO-DATE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET Variance

152 45 28 23 22 Inpatient Surgical Cases 5 4 1 18 23 (5)

109 197 252 344 315 Outpatient Surgical Cases 32 18 30 191 171 20

261 242 280 367 337 Total Surgical Cases 37 22 31 209 194 15

THIS THIS LAST YEAR- YEAR-
FY FY FY FY FY MONTH MONTH MONTH TO-DATE TO-DATE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET

1,081 1,001 968 1,007 1,014 General Surgery Clinic Visits - Traditional 81 73 92 586 509

15 41 41 35 10 General Surgery Clinic Visits - Virtual 1 0 1 6 0

879 701 687 426 335 Wound Clinic Visits 37 18 40 209 129

1,975 1,743 1,696 1,468 1,359 Total Clinic Visits 119 91 133 801 638

THIS THIS LAST YEAR- YEAR-
FY FY FY FY FY MONTH MONTH MONTH TO-DATE TO-DATE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET

3,002 1,489 3,265 3,841 3,948 OrthoTeam Clinic Visits - Traditional 345 203 282 2,112 1,823

261 106 399 654 570 OrthoTeam Clinic Visits - Virtual 48 39 31 268 278

3,263 1,595 3,664 4,495 4,518 Total OrthoTeam Visits 393 242 313 2,380 2,101

THIS THIS LAST YEAR- YEAR-
FY FY FY FY MONTH MONTH MONTH TO-DATE TO-DATE

2021 2022 2023 2024 ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET

57 299 349 598 Cardiology Clinic Visits 81 47 74 423 241

THIS THIS LAST YEAR- YEAR-
FY FY MONTH MONTH MONTH TO-DATE TO-DATE

2023 2024 ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET

323 460 Urology Clinic Visits 41 41 35 270 257

THIS THIS LAST YEAR- YEAR-
MONTH MONTH MONTH TO-DATE TO-DATE
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET

Podiatry Clinic Visits 125 85 69 281 200

MULTI-SPECIALTY CLINIC SERVICES

STOUGHTON HEALTH
S E R V I C E S   S U M M A R Y

for the six months ended March 31, 2025

GENERAL SURGERY SERVICES

General Surgery had 23 surgical cases in March. Inpatient cases were 3 cases or 150% above budget for the month and outpatient cases were above budget 
by 3 cases or 20.0%.

ORTHOPEDIC SERVICES

OrthoTeam had 37 surgical cases in March. Inpatient cases were above budget by 1 cases or 25.0% for March. Outpatient cases were above budget by 14 
cases or 77.8% for the month of March.

In March, the General Surgery clinic had a total of 119 visits for the month which was (14) visits or (10.5%) below the prior month but above budget by 28 
visits or 30.8%.

The OrthoTeam Clinic (Stoughton and Madison) had 393 visits and averaged 18.7 visits per clinic day. March visits were 151 visits or 62.4% above budget.

For the month of March, the Cardiology Clinic had 81 visits compared to a budget of 47 visits. Year-to-date visits are above budget by 182 visits or 75.2%.

The Urology Clinic had 41 visits for the month compared to a budget of 41 visits. Year-to-date visits are above budget by 13 visits or 5.1%.

The Podiatry Clinic had 125 visits for the month compared to a budget of 85 visits. Year-to-date visits are above budget by 81 visits or 40.5%.

Finance Committee Packet, Page 16



STOUGHTON HEALTH Page 7
BALANCE SHEET
March 31, 2025

Audited
Line ASSETS 3/31/2025 9/30/2024

Current Assets
1   Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,259,223  $ 26,462,192  
2   Certificates of deposit 17,000,000  20,000,000  
3   Short-term Investments - Assets Limited As to Use 4,085,620  12,632,163  
4   Patient accounts receivable, net of allowances 9,958,215  8,916,193  
5   Supplies 883,174  854,602  
6   Other current assets 1,656,043  2,632,105  
7  Total current assets 61,842,275  71,497,255  

Assets Limited as to Use
8  Board designated and other 17,771,367  13,148,212  

17,771,367  13,148,212  

9 Property and equipment 96,562,957  89,807,328  
10 Less accumulated depreciation (42,264,271)  (43,409,811)  
11   Net property and equipment 54,298,686  46,397,517  

Other Assets
12   Interest in net assets of Stoughton Hospital Foundation Inc. 3,839,652  3,866,412  
13   Other non-current assets 3,410,361  3,351,248  
14   Operating lease assets 4,564,141  1,103,961  
15   Investment in Stoughton Hospital Imaging LLC 1,575,969  1,604,963  

16 Total assets $ 147,302,451  $ 140,969,568  

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities
17   Current portion of long-term debt $ 1,208,518  $ 1,163,020  
18   Current portion of finance lease liabilities 112,375  103,115  
19   Current portion of operating lease liabilities 409,846  447,288  
20   Accounts payable 2,150,260  2,059,395  
21   Construction payable 2,447,428  5,019,369  
22   Accrued salaries and related withholdings 644,359  593,433  
23   Accrued vacation compensation 1,691,389  1,410,296  
24   Accrued interest 95,693  94,412  
25   Other current liabilities 33,348  25,213  
26   Estimated third-party payor settlements 874,190  770,830  
27   Total current liabilities 9,667,406  11,686,371  

28 Deferred compensation liability 468,258  604,553  
29 Long-term debt, net of current portion 20,654,224  21,281,131  
30 Long-term portion of finance lease liabilities 590,742  610,447  
31 Long-term portion of operating lease liabilities 2,313,173  606,417  

32  Total liabilities 33,693,803  34,788,919  

Net Assets
33   Without donor restrictions 109,601,220  102,173,221  
34   With donor restrictions 4,007,428  4,007,428  
35   Total net assets 113,608,648  106,180,649  

36 Total liabilities and net assets $ 147,302,451  $ 140,969,568  

Budget
37 Days revenue in accounts receivable 44   48  48  
38 Days cash on hand, all unrestricted sources 368   383  421  
39 Current Ratio 7.3   6.4  6.1  
40 Age of Plant 11.5   12.7  13.7  

Finance Committee Packet, Page 17



STOUGHTON HEALTH Page 8
INCOME STATEMENT
For the six months ended March 31, 2025

Variance Key:  Better than (worse than) budget

Current
Month Year to Date Year to Date

Line March Budget Variance TOTALS Budget Variance LAST YEAR
REVENUES
  Patient service revenue:

1   Inpatient 2,605,269$       2,011,951$    593,318$    12,260,503$     11,362,419$     898,084$    8,899,518$    
2   Outpatient 15,658,059   15,071,619    586,440    93,547,591       92,352,721       1,194,870    84,169,898  
3   Gross patient charges 18,263,328   17,083,570   1,179,758  105,808,094  103,715,140  2,092,954  93,069,416  
4   Contractual discounts and allowances (11,325,668)  (10,988,017)  (337,651)  (67,170,795)   (67,088,975)   (81,820)  (59,058,203)   
5   Charity care (49,429)  (71,637)  22,208  (367,054)   (272,092)   (94,962)  (231,922)   
6 6,888,231   6,023,916   864,315  38,270,245  36,354,073  1,916,172  33,779,291  

Contractual discounts % -62.01% -64.32% -63.48% -64.69% -63.46%
7   Other operating revenue 97,831  84,606  13,225  409,036 501,731 (92,695)  483,544 
8   Contributions 17,682  27,062  (9,380)  294,624 164,370 130,254  125,537 
9   Rental income 90,354  75,668  14,686  492,531 448,729 43,802  436,400 

10   TOTAL REVENUES 7,094,098   6,211,252   882,846  39,466,436  37,468,903  1,997,533  34,824,772  

11   Salaries 2,199,761   2,195,946   (3,815)  12,784,226  13,155,743  371,517  11,192,705  
12   Employee benefits 594,226   600,735   6,509  3,488,269  3,797,731  309,462  2,830,142  
13   Professional fees 690,004   745,309   55,305  4,161,377  4,417,878  256,501  3,594,531  
14   Purchased services 909,974   845,877   (64,097)  4,896,229  5,285,224  388,995  4,908,411  
15   Supplies 721,985   675,501   (46,484)  4,379,728  4,470,986  91,258  4,296,949  
16   Interest 27,089   24,338   (2,751)  164,873  147,780  (17,093)  170,902  
17   Administrative and general 240,425   269,331   28,906  1,475,631  1,705,024  229,393  1,229,300  
18   Insurance 26,301   24,513   (1,788)  158,330  146,953  (11,377)  131,025  
19   Depreciation and amortization 292,632   306,195   13,563  1,664,177  1,719,970  55,793  1,502,087  
20      Total expenses 5,702,397   5,687,745   (14,652)  33,172,840  34,847,289  1,674,449  29,856,052  

21    Operating income (loss) 1,391,701   523,507   868,194  6,293,596  2,621,614  3,671,982  4,968,720  

Other income (loss):
22   Investment income (loss) - realized 282,483   246,860   35,623  1,540,005  1,626,549  (86,544)  1,909,865  
23   Unrealized gains (losses) on investments (616,917)  24,577   (641,494)  (826,608)   147,459  (974,067)  1,598,432  
24   Earnings (loss) in Sto Hosp Imaging 30,715   45,833   (15,118)  221,006  275,000  (53,994)  268,489  

25    Excess of revenues over expenses 1,087,982$     840,777$     247,205$    7,227,999$    4,670,622$    2,557,377$    8,745,506$    

26    Operating Margin 19.6% 8.4% 15.9% 7.0% 14.3%
27    Total Margin 14.7% 12.9% 17.5% 11.9% 23.6%

28    Adjusted Patient Days 3,098   3,423   20,436  20,782  16,764  
29    Net revenue per APD 2,223$     1,760$     1,873$    1,749$    2,015$    
30    Salaries per APD 710$     642$     626$    633$    668$    
31    Benefits per APD 192$     175$     171$    183$    169$    
32    Supplies per APD 233$     197$     214$    215$    256$    

Patient service revenue

Finance Committee Packet, Page 18



STOUGHTON HEALTH Page 9
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the six months ended March 31, 2025

Audited
3/31/25 9/30/24

Unrestricted net assets:
 Excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses 7,227,999$   15,957,568 
 Net assets released from restrictions - 1,940 
 Contributions and grants for purchases of property and equipment 200,000  8,930 

 Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 7,427,999  15,968,438 

Temporarily restricted net assets:
 Restricted contributions - 3,825 
 Change in interest in net assets of the Foundation - 1,162,211 
 Net assets released from restrictions - (1,940)  

 Increase (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets - 1,164,096 

 Increase (decrease) in net assets 7,427,999  17,132,534 

Net assets, beginning 106,180,649  89,048,115 

Net assets, ending 113,608,648$   106,180,649 

Finance Committee Packet, Page 19



STOUGHTON HEALTH Page 10
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the six months ended March 31, 2025

Current YTD Audited
Month March 9/30/2024

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
 Increase (decrease) in net assets 1,087,983$   7,427,999$   17,132,534$   
 Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets

 to net cash provided by operating activities:
 Change in interest in net assets of Stoughton Hospital Foundation Inc. -  -  (1,162,211)  
 Depreciation and amortization 292,632  1,664,177  3,169,309  
 Amortization of debt issuance costs 3,193  19,073  41,872  
 Net realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments 576,632  683,265  (2,778,898)  
 Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment -  97,204  37,916  
 Change in investment in Stoughton Hospital Imaging, LLC (30,716)  (221,006)  (525,356)  
 Distribution from Stoughton Hospital Imaging, LLC - 250,000 250,000  
 Contributions and grants for property and equipment - (200,000) (12,755)  
 Increase (decrease) from changes in:

 Patient accounts receivable, net (763,878)  (1,042,022)  (1,310,902)  
 Supplies 17,815  (28,572)  65,653  
 Estimated third-party payor settlements 49,609  103,360  574,338  
 Other current / non-current assets 63,185  (803,349)  (1,375,944)  
 Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities (587,588)  607,265  521,233  

 Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 708,867  8,557,394  14,626,789  

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
 Purchase of property and equipment (2,393,629)  (12,301,940)  (16,612,612) 
 Proceeds from insurance and disposal of property and equipment -  -  39,310  
 Net (Purchases) and Sales of certificates of deposit -  -  (5,000,000)  
 Purchases of assets limited as to use (704,004)  (8,762,003)  (36,084,540) 
 Sales/Proceeds from maturities of assets limited as to use 5,640,163  19,211,577  30,490,308  

 Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2,542,530  (1,852,366)  (27,167,534) 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
 Proceeds from issuance of new debt -  -  15,165,000  
 Payment of debt issuance costs (1,200)  (3,880)  (239,366)  
 Repayment of long-term debt (101,652)  (596,602)  (1,161,818)  
 Payments on finance leases (9,130)  (54,256)  (87,543)  
 Restricted contributions and grants (40) 26,761 12,755  

 Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (112,022)  (627,977)  13,689,028  

 Net increase (decrease) in cash 3,139,375  6,077,051  1,148,283  

Cash, beginning 25,119,848  22,182,172  21,033,889  

Cash, ending 28,259,223$   28,259,223$   22,182,172$   

Finance Committee Packet, Page 20



SBAR: Ultrasonic Washer for Sterile Processing 
Department (SPD) 

1 

S: Situation 

With the upcoming implementation of robotics, the sterile processing department (SPD) will 
need to purchase a new ultrasonic washer that can effectively integrate with robotic systems for 
cleaning surgical instruments. This upgrade is essential to maintain high standards of instrument 
sterilization and ensure the successful integration of robotics into the department. 

B: Background 

Ultrasonic washers are used in SPD to clean surgical instruments using high-frequency sound 
waves. As the department prepares to implement robotic systems for instrument handling or 
processing, it is important to ensure that all equipment, including ultrasonic washers, are 
compatible and capable of meeting the increased demands. Robotics in SPD will require washers 
with higher efficiency, capacity, and possibly automated features to keep pace with the new 
workflows. 

A: Assessment 

The current ultrasonic washer is not equipped to handle the increased throughput or meet the 
advanced needs required by robotic systems. There is a need for an upgraded model that can 
offer better integration with automated systems and meet the newest standards for instrument 
cleaning efficiency and safety. Failure to acquire an updated ultrasonic washer could result in 
delays in instrument processing and risks to patient safety due to ineffective cleaning. 

The need for an ultrasonic washer was carefully vetted with the SPD project team to confirm that 
there is adequate electrical and plumbing infrastructure to support the new equipment. Initially, 
the ultrasonic washer was planned to be bundled with the purchase of the robotic system. 
However, due to the extended lead time for ultrasonic washers (four to six months), it is now 
critical to initiate the purchase of the washer separately to ensure timely delivery and integration 
with the robotic system. 

R: Recommendation 

Proceed with the purchase order for the ultrasonic washer now to account for the four-to-six-
month lead time to ensure that it will be ready for installation as soon as the robotic system is 
operational to ensure a seamless transition and avoid delays. 

Request motion to recommend to the Executive Committee/Governing Board approval of 
FY2025 Capital for the capital purchase of the ultrasonic washer at the cost of $110,740 which 
includes handling/packing and installation.  

Finance Committee Packet, Page 21



SBAR: Purchase of the Mako Robot
1 

Situation: 

Stoughton Health would like to purchase and implement the Stryker Mako robotic-assisted surgery 
system to enhance joint replacement procedures, including knee and hip surgeries.  

Background: 

The Mako robotic system is an advanced, robotic-assisted surgery platform designed for joint 
replacements, including knee and hip surgeries. It offers 3D pre-operative planning and real-time surgical 
feedback, enhancing precision and ensuring that surgeries are customized to each patient’s unique 
anatomy. This system enables highly accurate bone resection and implant placement, which reduces the 
risk of complications and revision surgeries. 

Key benefits of the Mako system include: 

• Increased surgical precision and alignment accuracy.
• Faster recovery times and reduced postoperative pain compared to traditional methods.
• Minimally invasive procedures that reduce trauma to surrounding tissues.
• Recruit orthopedic surgeons who are accustomed to using the advanced technology.
• Attract individuals who view robotics as a cutting-edge advancement in healthcare.

The Mako system is expected to evolve further, with future applications such as the shoulder surgery 
module coming in 2026.   Purchasing versus leasing has been vetted and makes more financial sense to 
purchase. This was purchase was part of the 2025 Capital Budget.  

Assessment: 

As robotic surgery becomes more common in hospitals, adopting Mako Robotics will give us a 
competitive advantage in attracting patients who seek advanced surgical options.  

COST ANALYSIS: Purchase vs Lease 

• Newest version, will allow for shoulder application
• 5-7 years of useful life.

Monthly 
Amortization/Payment 

5 year assumption

Monthly 
Amortization/Payment 

7 year assumption Total Cash Payment

Rebate for volume - 
$800 per Case - 

$250,000 5 year max
Annual 
Maint

Buy 15,333$  10,952$  920,000$  (250,000)$  120,000$    

Lease FMV -Turn in or buy FMV(5YR) 16,775$  1,006,500$                 (250,000)$  120,000$    

Lease $1 Buyout (5 yr) 18,291$  1,097,460$                 (250,000)$  120,000$    

Finance Committee Packet, Page 22



SBAR: Purchase of the Mako Robot
2 

Recommendation: 

Request Motion to Recommend Approval to the Governing Board to purchase a Mako Robotic System 
for $920,000 from FY2025 Capital Budget.   

Finance Committee Packet, Page 23



_______________________________________________ 

RESOLUTIONS OF THE  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF 
STOUGHTON HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION 

_______________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND 

The Board of Directors this Corporation has determined that it is in the best interests of 
this Corporation to retire the 2015 Bonds at the interest reset date on September 1, 2025.   

Stoughton Hospital Association (the “Borrower”) pursuant to Section 303 of the Bond 
Indenture and Loan Agreement dated as of September 1, 2015 (the “Series 2015 Bond Indenture”) 
among the Borrower, the Wisconsin Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) 
and First Business Bank, as purchaser (the “Purchaser”), elects to repay the Series 2015 Note in 
an amount equal to $5,290,134.90 on September 1, 2025 (the “Redemption Date”) and cause a 
redemption of the Series 2015 Bonds. 

The Borrower further directs the Bank to draw funds from the Borrower’s money market 
account ending in 8610 in the amount of the outstanding balance of the Series 2015 Note and apply 
such funds to the payment of the Series 2015 Note on the Redemption Date. 

Section 8(B)(2) of the bylaws of Stoughton Hospital Association (the “Corporation”) require 
that transactions involving Financing be approved by a Supermajority of the members of the 
Board of Directors, including both of the Class IV Directors.  The purpose of these Resolutions 
is to evidence the Board’s approval of the repayment and provide the required Supermajority 
consent. 

RESOLVED: 

1. The President-Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
(collectively, the “Officers”) and each of them, either alone or together, are authorized to take any 
action and to negotiate, execute, seal and deliver the Documents and any other document which, 
in that Officer’s judgment, is necessary or desirable to otherwise carry out the intent of these 
Resolutions. 

2. Any actions already taken by the Officers or any of them which are authorized by
these resolutions are ratified and confirmed. 

3. To the extent this resolution is inconsistent with prior resolutions of the board of
directors of this Corporation this resolution supersedes those prior resolutions. 

4. This Resolution was duly adopted by a Supermajority of the Board of Directors of
Stoughton Hospital Association, including by the Class IV Directors of the Board of Directors of 
Stoughton Hospital Association, as of May 28, 2025. 

Finance Committee Packet, Page 24



QB\84764105.2  

_______________________________________________ 

RESOLUTIONS OF THE  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF 
STOUGHTON HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION 

_______________________________________________ 

BACKGROUND 

The Board of Directors this Corporation has determined that it is in the best interests of 
this Corporation to prepay the 2018 and 2023 Bonds at the annual maximum allowable amount 
without penalty in 2025.   

Stoughton Hospital Association (the “Borrower”) pursuant to Section 303 of the Bond 
Indenture and Loan Agreement dated as of November 1, 2018 (the “Series 2018 Bond Indenture”) 
among the Borrower, the Wisconsin Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) 
and First Madison Investment Corporation, as purchaser (the “Purchaser”), elects to partially 
prepay the Series 2018 Note in an amount equal to $114,138.96 on June 16, 2025 (the 
“Redemption Date”) and cause a partial redemption of the Series 2018 Bonds, in accordance with 
Section 302(b) of the Bond Indenture. 

The Borrower pursuant to Section 303 of the Bond Indenture and Loan Agreement dated 
as of October 1, 2023 (the “Series 2023 Bond Indenture”) among the Borrower, the Authority and 
the Purchaser elects to partially prepay the Series 2023 Note in an amount equal to $3,033,000.00 
on the Redemption Date and cause a partial redemption of the Series 2023 Bonds, in accordance 
with Section 302(b) of the Bond Indenture. 

The Borrower hereby directs a redemption of the Series 2018 Bonds on the Redemption 
Date in an amount corresponding to the amount of the Series 2018 Note to be prepaid as required 
pursuant to Section 303 of the Series 2018 Bond Indenture and directs a redemption of the Series 
2023 Bonds on the Redemption Date in an amount corresponding to the amount of the Series 2023 
Note to be prepaid as required pursuant to Section 303 of the Series 2023 Bond Indenture.  

The Borrower further directs the Bank to draw funds from the Borrower’s money market 
account ending in 8610 in the amount of the partial prepayments of the Series 2018 Note and the 
Series 2023 Note and apply such funds to the prepayment of the Series 2018 Note and the Series 
2023 Note on the Redemption Date. 

Section 8(B)(2) of the bylaws of Stoughton Hospital Association (the “Corporation”) require 
that transactions involving Financing be approved by a Supermajority of the members of the 
Board of Directors, including both of the Class IV Directors.  The purpose of these Resolutions 
is to evidence the Board’s approval of the prepayment and provide the required Supermajority 
consent. 

Finance Committee Packet, Page 25



QB\84764105.2 
-2-

 

RESOLVED: 

1. The President-Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
(collectively, the “Officers”) and each of them, either alone or together, are authorized to take any 
action and to negotiate, execute, seal and deliver the Documents and any other document which, 
in that Officer’s judgment, is necessary or desirable to otherwise carry out the intent of these 
Resolutions 

2. Any actions already taken by the Officers or any of them which are authorized by
these resolutions are ratified and confirmed. 

3. To the extent this resolution is inconsistent with prior resolutions of the board of
directors of this Corporation this resolution supersedes those prior resolutions. 

4. This Resolution was duly adopted by a Supermajority of the Board of Directors of
Stoughton Hospital Association, including by the Class IV Directors of the Board of Directors of 
Stoughton Hospital Association, as of May 28, 2025. 

Finance Committee Packet, Page 26



oonated secaus

It feels good

o help other 

2025-2027
Community Health Needs 
Implementation Strategy 

900 Ridge St., Stoughton, WI 53589 
stoug hton hea Ith.com Finance Committee Packet, Page 27



Finance Committee Packet, Page 28



Finance Committee Packet, Page 29



Finance Committee Packet, Page 30





Finance Committee Packet, Page 32



Finance Committee Packet, Page 33



Finance Committee Packet, Page 34





Finance Committee Packet, Page 36




	Committee Function and Members
	Presenter
	Discussion
	Item
	ADP5512.tmp
	Committee Function and Members
	Presenter
	Discussion
	Item

	ADP3A44.tmp
	S: Situation
	B: Background
	A: Assessment
	R: Recommendation

	ADPEF49.tmp
	S: Situation
	B: Background
	A: Assessment
	R: Recommendation

	ADPBAB5.tmp
	1. The President-Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer (collectively, the “Officers”) and each of them, either alone or together, are authorized to take any action and to negotiate, execute, seal and deliver the Documents and any oth...
	2. Any actions already taken by the Officers or any of them which are authorized by these resolutions are ratified and confirmed.
	3. To the extent this resolution is inconsistent with prior resolutions of the board of directors of this Corporation this resolution supersedes those prior resolutions.
	4. This Resolution was duly adopted by a Supermajority of the Board of Directors of Stoughton Hospital Association, including by the Class IV Directors of the Board of Directors of Stoughton Hospital Association, as of May 28, 2025.

	ADP8661.tmp
	1. The President-Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer (collectively, the “Officers”) and each of them, either alone or together, are authorized to take any action and to negotiate, execute, seal and deliver the Documents and any oth...
	2. Any actions already taken by the Officers or any of them which are authorized by these resolutions are ratified and confirmed.
	3. To the extent this resolution is inconsistent with prior resolutions of the board of directors of this Corporation this resolution supersedes those prior resolutions.
	4. This Resolution was duly adopted by a Supermajority of the Board of Directors of Stoughton Hospital Association, including by the Class IV Directors of the Board of Directors of Stoughton Hospital Association, as of May 28, 2025.




